
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Tuesday, 14 December 2021 

 
TIME:  12.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 8th December 2021  

 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Technical Services and 
Highway Works Framework - Hayley Nixon / Charlotte Pritchard  
 

(Pages 7 - 22) 

5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Chapel Street East Phase 1 - 
Simon Telford  

 

(Pages 23 - 44) 

6   Any other urgent business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

6a Approval to Award the Contract related to MyWork Campus Digital 
Infrastructure Upgrade. This is for Supply, Installation and 

Maintenance of Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application - Steven Fry/Matt 
Wall  
 

(Pages 45 - 54) 

7   Exclusion of the public  

 

 

8   Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public)  

 

 

9   Date and time of next meeting   

Public Document Pack



 

 

10:00am on Wednesday 12th January 2022 in the Salford Suite, Civic 

Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 
 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 

Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

8th December 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 11:23am 

Present in Person 
City Mayor Dennett and Councillors Hinds (in the Chair), Merry and Youd. 

In Attendance in Person 
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Madha Ayub  Senior Programme Manager Integrated Commissioning 

Sam Betts  Assistant Director HR &OD 

Debbie Blackburn Assistant Director Public Health Nursing & Wellbeing 

Anene Chiegboka Principal Engineer 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Frank O’Sullivan Strategic HR & OD Manager 

Tracy Squirrel  Assistant Building Liaison Officer 

Jennifer Walsh  Commissioning Manager 

Charlie Winstanley Assistant to City Mayor  
 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Kelly and Youd. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24th November were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

5(a) Request for Permission to Participate in the GM Collaborative Contract for the 

Provision of Temporary Workers 

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director HR & OD seeking approval to 

participate in the GM Collaborative Contract for the Provision of Temporary Workers via the use of a 
beneficiary agreement with Trafford Council as contracting authority with the provider. 

The Council took a number of strategic and operational workforce planning approaches to maintain 

appropriate staffing levels and ensure the right people with the right skills, knowledge and 

behaviours were in place at the right time to meet the short and long-term needs for effective 

service delivery. However, a number of external and internal factors, many of which would be 

unpredictable, unplanned or immediate in need would affect staffing levels requiring a more 

immediate or temporary solution that typical resourcing routes may not be suitable to offer. Over a 

number of years, the Council had worked collaboratively with other regional local authorities and 

organisations to develop an approach to engaging temporary workers to reduce costs and risks for 

the organisation when it came to maintaining the right employee levels for effective service delivery. 

The first collaborative approach was established amongst the then core Greater Manchester 

Authorities (excluding Manchester CC) in 2008 and the latest contract collaboration would be the 

4th generation of such arrangements. Throughout this time Salford had continued to be part of the 

collaborative arrangements with the current Greater Manchester Collaborative Contract in place 

since 2016. Salford City Council was not committed to any level of spend via this arrangement and it 
was a compliant and cost-effective route to procure agency workers as and when required. 

Salford City Council paid all its agency workers Foundation Living Wage or above from day one. It 

was understood that most other GM local authorities paid at least the FLW although not all were 
accredited with the Foundation.  

All requests to engage agency workers were looked at carefully to see if the gaps could be filled 

differently but there were particular areas such as early years settings, social work, street cleansing 

and refuse collection where cover was necessary at peak times or to cover sickness & holidays in 

order to comply with minimum ratios and/or maintain service provision. In the longer term Salford 

made every attempt to help agency workers who had been working for the Council to secure more 

substantive positions within the authority. 

There was no doubt that it was currently a candidate’s market and many local authorities were 

facing challenges in recruiting permanent staff particularly to specialist roles where rates of pay 

might be significantly higher in the private sector. Work was ongoing among local authority HR leads 

on how to address this challenge in the longer term, including promoting the tangible and intangible 

benefits of working in the public sector. 

The beneficiary agreement which would be drawn up as part of the collaboration would provide the 
council to make explicit its ask for Salford in terms of Social Value to the city and its residents.  

RESOLVED, THAT: approval be granted for Salford City Council to participate in the Greater 

Manchester Collaborative Contract for the Provision of Temporary Workers via the use of a 

beneficiary agreement with Trafford Council as contracting authority with the provider. 

Page 2



5(b) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Framework for 

Demolition and Associated Services 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award an 

extension of the framework agreement for Demolition and Associated Services for a further six 
months or until a new framework was in place. 

The existing framework which consisted of 6 contractors (2 of which were Salford based companies, 

2 based in Greater Manchester and the remaining 2 located within the North West), was for an 

initial 2-year period with an option to extend for a further 2- year period, which came to an end on 

the 14th November 2021, following the final year’s extension. The existing framework which was 

accessed by Bury MBC, Tameside Council, Trafford Council, Manchester City Council, Stockport 

Council and Wigan Council, supplied very competitive rates, with all projects delivered efficiently 
and to programme.  

A new Demolition and Associated Services Framework was presently being prepared to bring future 

delivery areas within the city under one framework, with planned completion by April 2022. 

Unfortunately, this exercise has been delayed due to officer commitments to deliver current 

refurbishment works programme, which was behind schedule, due to suppliers and manufacturing 

issues, as a result of the Covid-19 Pandemic. In the interim period to April 2022, the extension of the 

existing framework agreement was required to ensure continuity in the delivery of capital 

programme works and provision of the Building Control team’s dangerous buildings and out of hours 
security services. 

An extension to the current framework would allow time to engage with the market, in particular 

with smaller suppliers, about the city council’s intentions and requirements.  

RESOLVED, THAT:  

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved as the ongoing supply of the 

services was required so urgently as no to permit compliance with the requirements of 

competition, and 

(2) the framework agreement for Demolition and Associated Services be extended for a further 
six months to 16th April 2022 or until a new framework is in place. 

5(c) Request for Approval – Oldfield Road Corridor Scheme 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go out to 
competition for the construction of the proposed Oldfield Road Corridor scheme. 

The Oldfield Road Corridor scheme gained programme entry to the Greater Manchester Mayors 

Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) in 2019. Once completed, the scheme would form part of 

the 'Bee Network' for Greater Manchester which aimed to create the largest joined up system of 

walking and cycling routes in the UK. The purpose of the report was to request approval to go out to 

competition for site investigations which would support the next stages of design / development of 

the scheme. Funding to develop the scheme, including the site investigations, had been secured 

through The MCF programme. Completion of the design stage of the project would enable Salford 
City Council to bid for funding to deliver the project.  

Page 3



It was anticipated that the delivery stage of scheme would be largely funded from grant, subject to a 

successful bid and business case approval. In addition, approximately £461,000 of Section 106 

funding to be secured by the City Council from developments in the area would be used. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1) The issue of tenders for site investigations along Oldfield Road, Salford to complete the detailed 
design stage of the project for the construction of the Oldfield Road Corridor scheme be authorised,  

2) Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 officer to 

submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for 

review. 

3) Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 officer to 

draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.  

5(d) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Semi and Independent Living Services in 

Salford 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking to award a number of 
contracts for Semi and Independent Living Services for 16-25 year olds. 

This was the first time that Salford Children Services had gone out to full open tender for this suite of 

services. Whilst the services had been operational in Salford for many years, LOTS 1 – 4 were 

previously commissioned by the Supporting People agenda and framework prior to being disbanded. 

LOT 5 was a historic long term arrangement and a 3 way contract with Great Places; Salford Council 
& Foundations from its inception. 

A provider engagement event was held on 16th July 2021 to try and gauge the market to analyse the 

number of potential providers who could deliver the services, as well as sharing the vision for these 

services in Salford. This was a virtual event where 72 individuals from 59 organisations attended. 

Due to the numbers attending the event and high number of expressions of interest it was decided 

to do a 3 stage award process and included a formal presentation for the top scoring providers for 

each of the 5 lots. It was agreed that the pricing structure would be capped and that anyone bidding 

over the budget would be excluded from the process. It was also decided that the weighting for 

price should be minimal at 5% as it was felt that many providers would automatically bid in at the 
top of the budget and would not leave much room for differentiation.  

There were 7 on time bids submitted. 10 providers opted out and 74 had no further response when 

requested. Out of the 7 on time tenders, 4 met the criteria for the ITT stage and moved onto the 

assessment process. 

Of the two bidders for Lot 5 neither would be able to come in on budget so an extension of up to 12 

months with the incumbent provider (who had not bid as a result of the capped pricing structure( 

was being requested to enable further work to review the finances and go back out to tender to 

ensure all possible providers had a fair and equal opportunity to bid in for this tender.  

It was explained that the proposed duration of lots 1 to 4 of five years plus two optional extension 

periods of 12 months each was due to the need to provide stability for the young people who lived 

in these settings. However, each contract would be subject to quarterly monitoring and annual 

reviews and the council could serve six months’ notice at any point. Commissioners had an excellent 

Page 4



working relationship with the providers and were able challenge and identify anything that needed 
to be addressed. 

In the longer term there was scope for identifying if there was any property in the council’s own 

estate which could be managed by the council and used to accommodate young people who were in 
need of these services. 

RESOLVED, THAT:  

The award of the following Lots be approved: 

Lot 1 – Minimum 16 units of accommodation and support services for young people aged 16-
24 who are at risk of homelessness and/or care leavers with medium to high support needs: 

Contractor - Adullam Homes Housing Association 

Contract – five years plus two optional extension periods of 12 months each, with a value of 

£126,259 per annum 

Lot 2 – Minimum 35 units of accommodation and support services for young people aged 16–25 
who are at risk of homelessness and/or care leavers with low-medium support needs. 

Contractor – Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

Contract – five years plus two optional extension periods of 12 months each, with a value of 
£61,348 per annum. 

Lot 3 – Minimum 4 unts of accommodation for intensive support linked to core Salford Service 
Route 29 

Contractor – Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

Contract – five years plus two optional extension periods of 12 months each, with a value of 

£71,666 per annum. 

Lot 4 – Minimum 4 bed provision for young people aged 16–24 who are at risk of being a 
homeless family (Must be pregnant or have children in their care) 

Contractor – Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

Contract – five years plus two optional extension periods of 12 months each, with a value of 
£47,970 per annum. 

1) The contract with Foundations for the provision of Semi & Independent Living Service for 16-18 

year old care leavers be extended for a period of up to 12 months with an estimated average 
value of £546,950.80 per annum. 

6. Exclusion of the Public 

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 

Page 5



7. Decision Item – Part 2 – Closed to the Public 

7(a) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Domestic Abuse 

Consideration was given to a joint report of the Strategic Directors for People and Place and the 

Chief Accountable Officer of Salford Clinical Commissioning Group seeking approval to award the 
contract for Domestic Abuse Services in Salford. 

The City Mayor would take the opportunity to seek the views of the relevant Lead Members who 

had been briefed on the proposals prior to the Procurement Board meeting 

RESOLVED, THAT: Subject to the above, the award of the contract be approved as outlined in the 
report.  

Page 6



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
14th December 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for the Technical and Highways Works  
Framework 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the contracts for the Technical and 
Highways Works Framework as detailed in the table below: 
 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of 
Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 

Technical and Highways Works Framework 

Name of Successful 
Contractors  Name of 

Contractor 
 

Type of 
Organisation 

Registration 
No 

SME/Non 
SME 

Lot 1 

- Argyle NW 
Construction 

Ltd 
- Colas Limited 
 

- Rosgal 
Limited  

- P Casey 
(Land 
Reclamation) 

Ltd  

 

- Limited 
Company  

 
- Limited 
Company  

- Limited 
Company 

- Limited 
Company  
 

 
 

 

 

- 02829893 
 

 
- 2644726 
 

- 3731189 
 

- 1122137 
 
 

 
 

 

 

- SME  
 

 
- Non SME 
 

- SME 
 

- Non SME 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
- Bethell 

Construction 
Limited  

- Eric Wright 
Civil 
Engineering 

Ltd 

- Limited 

Company  
 

- Limited  
Company  
 

 
 

- 0264322 

 
 

- 2565379 
 
 

- SME 

 
 

- SME 
 

Lot 2 

- Coating 
Services Ltd 
- Protek 

Fencing Ltd 
 

 

- Limited 
Company  
- Limited 

Company 

 

- 3852483 
 
- 2197089 

 

 

- SME  
 
- SME 

Lot 3 

- Colas Limited  
 

- Rosgal 
Limited 
 

- General 
Utilities 
Northwest Ltd  

- AE Yates Ltd  
 

- Bethell 
Construction 
Limited  

- No Dig 
Drainage 

Solutions Ltd  
 

 

- Limited 
Company 

- Limited 
Company  
 

- Limited 
Company  
 

- Limited 
Company  

- Limited 
Company 
 

- Limited 
Company  

 

- 2644726 
 

- 3731189 
 
 

- 6468779 
 
 

- 415632 
 

- 0264322 
 
 

- 10378682 

 

- Non SME 
 

- SME  
 
 

- SME  
 
 

- SME 
 

- SME 
 
 

- SME  

Lot 4 

- P Casey 
(Land 
Reclamation) 

Ltd 
- Eric Wright 

Civil 
Engineering 
Ltd 

- Coating 
Services 

Limited  
-Amalgamated 
Construction 

Ltd (trading as 
AmcoGiffen) 

 

- Limited 
Company 
 

 
- Limited 

Company  
 
 

- Limited 
Company  

 
- Limited 
Company  

 
 

 

- 1122137 
 
 

 
-  2565379 

 
 
 

- 3852483 
 

 
- 995892 
 

 
 

 

- Non SME  
 
 

 
- SME  

 
 
 

- SME  
 

 
- Non SME  
 

 
 

Page 8



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 

 

- AE Yates Ltd 

 
- Bethell 

Construction 
Ltd  

- Limited 

Company 
 

- Limited 
Company  

-  415632 

 
- 0264322 

- SME 

 
- SME  

 

Lot 5 

- Pavement 

Testing 
Services Ltd  

- Construction 
Testing 
Solutions 

Limited  
- Concept 

Engineering 
Consultants 
Ltd  

 
- Limited 

Company  
 

- Limited 
Company  
 

 
- Limited 

Company 
 
 

 

 
- 04374737 

 
 

- 05998333 
 
 

 
- 03401367   

 
- SME  

 
 

- Non SME  
 
 

 
- SME  

Lot 6 

- P Casey 

(Land 
Reclamation) 
Ltd 

- Wright 
Landscapes 

Ltd 
- Horticon Ltd  
 

- Groundwork 
Landscape Ltd  

- Landscape 
Engineering 
Ltd  

- Bethell 
Construction 

Ltd 

 
- Limited 

Company  
 
 

- Limited 
Company 

 
- Limited 
Company  

- Limited 
Company  

- Limited 
Company  
 

- Limited 
Company  

 
 
 

 
- 1122137 

 
 
 

- 04611247 
 

 
- 2463376 
 

- 1339901 
 

- 04049863 
 
 

- 0264322 

 
- Non SME 

 
 
 

- SME  
 

 
- SME 
 

- SME    
 

- SME  
 
 

- SME  

 

Status of 
Organisations 

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement) 

Choose an item. 

 

Contract Value (£) £40,000,000 full project 

Contract Duration                                           3 years (+1) 

Contract Start Date  03/01/2022 

Contract End Date  03/01/2025 

Page 9



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Optional Extension 

Period 1 
12 months 

Optional Extension 
Period 2 

n/a 

Who will approve each 
Extension Period? 

Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name 
& number) 

Shoaib Mohammad, Assistant Director Technical Services 

Lead Service Group 

 

Place 

 

How the contract was 
procured? 

(to be supplied by 

procurement) 

OJEU Compliant Tender (Open)  

Framework Details 
(where applicable) 

(procurement body, 
framework reference & 

title, start/ end date 

N/a  

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below) 

Ethical Contractor 
(EC): Mayor’s 

Employment Charter 

Lot  Contractors Y/N 

1 Argyle 

Colas 

P Casey 

Bethell 

Eric Wright 

Rosgal 

Y 

N 

N 

Y 

N 

N 

2 Coating Services  

Protek 

N 

N 

3 AE Yates  

Colas 

General Utilities 
Northwest 

Rosgal 

Bethell 

No Dig Drainage 
Solutions 

N 

N 

Y 

 

N 

Y 

N 

4 Amalgamated 

Coating Services  

Eric Wright  

P Casey  

AE Yates 

N 

 

N 

Y 

Y 

Page 10



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Bethell Y 

5 Pavement Testing 
Services  

Construction 

Testing  

Concept 
Engineering 

N 

 

N 

 

N 

6 P Casey  

Wright Landscapes 

Horticon 

Groundwork 
Landscape 

Landscape 

Engineering 

Bethell 

Eric Wright 

Y  

N 

Y 

N 

 

Y 

 

Y 

N 
 

EC: Committed to sign 
up to charter 

Lot  Contractors Y/N 

1 Argyle 

Colas 

P Casey 

Bethell 

Eric Wright 

Rosgal 

n/a 

Y 

n/a 

n/a 

Y 

Y 

2 Coating Services  

Protek 

Y 

Y 

3 AE Yates  

Colas 

General Utilities 
Northwest 

Rosgal 

Bethell  

No Dig Drainage 

Solutions 

n/a 

Y 

n/a 

 

Y 

n/a 

Y  

4 Amalgamated 

Construction 

Coating Services  

Eric Wright  

P Casey  

AE Yates 

Bethell  

Y 

 

Y 

Y 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

5 Pavement Testing 
Services  

Y 

 

Page 11



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Construction 

Testing 

Concept 
Engineering 

 

Y 

 

Y 

6 P Casey 

Wright Landscapes 

Horticon 

Groundwork 

Landscape 

Landscape 
Engineering 

Bethell  

Eric Wright 

n/a 

Y 

n/a 

Y 

 

n/a 

 

n/a 

Y 
 

EC: Accredited Living 
Wage Employer 

 

Lot  Contractors Y/N 

1 Argyle 

Colas 

P Casey 

Bethell 

Eric Wright 

Rosgal  

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

Y 

2 Coating Services 
Ltd 

Protek 

Y 

 

N 

3 AE Yates  

Colas 

General Utilities NW 
Construction  

Rosgal 

Bethell  

No Dig Drainage 
Solutions  

N 

N 

N 

 

Y 

N 

Y 

4 Amalgamated 
Construction 

Coating Services  

Eric Wright  

P Casey  

AE Yates 

Bethell 

N 

 

Y 

N 

N 

N 

N 

5 Pavement Testing 
Services  

N 

 

Page 12



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Construction 

Testing 

Concept 
Engineering 

N 

 

N 

6 P Casey 

Wright Landscapes 

Horticon 

Groundwork 
Landscape 

Landscape 

Engineering 

Bethell  

Eric Wright  

N 

N 

Y 

Y 

 

N 

 

N 

N 
 

  

 
 

All employers who are not accredited Living Wage Employers or approved Mayor’s 

Charter supporters have committed to sign up as part of their Stage 1 submissions.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above-mentioned 
Technical Services Framework Agreement and to appoint the contractors named in 

this report to the specified lots. 
 

The Procurement Board on 21st April 2021 approved that the council would seek to 
procure a wider Framework covering 6 Lots to ensure the following: 
 

 Increase transparency  

 Increase opportunities to access new suppliers and new markets 

 Increase supply base 

 To capture added value 

 To maximise social value 

 To create a robust sustainable Framework 

 
Following the procurement process undertaken, this report outlines the successful 
contractors seeking approval to be appointed to the Framework. The Framework 

period is 3 years + 1 year subject to annual review, with a potential Framework value 
of approximately £40 million over 4 years.    

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

- Approval to go out to competition for Technical and Highways Works Framework 

21st April 2021 

 
 

Page 13



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

KEY DECISION:  Yes  

 
DETAILS:  
 

1. Background 
 
The Technical Services Framework has been created through extensive consultation 

and workshops with the service areas to ensure it provides the best value and a 
compliant option for the procurement of services, for the next 3-4 years. The 

Framework Agreement will demonstrate value for money (VFM), which is defined as 
the optimum combination of whole life costs and quality to meet the user's 
requirement.  

 

The Council is seeking to appoint a number of suppliers to act as Principal Contractors 
where appropriate within each Lot to deliver works on behalf of SCC. Any works falling 

outside of the specified scope of the Framework will be procured outside of this 
arrangement. 

 
A Market Engagement process was conducted through the Chest. Providers were 
asked to participate in this process to inform the final scope and contract arrangements 

within the Lots and to engage with providers prior to the tender going out via the Chest.    
 

The Lots have been designed to support each service area to maximise value for 
money and social value opportunities through using the Social Value Portal to drive 
innovative solutions to deliver our key council services across Technical and Highway 

Services.  
 

 

Lot 
number  

Activity description & award Service Area Approx. value p.a.  

1 Minor Civils  

<£150k - direct award 
£150k - £500k - mini 
competition 

Highway 

Construction and 
Infrastructure  

£5M 

2 Install and Maintain Vehicle 

Restraint Systems (Crash 
Barriers)  

-annual mini competition 

Street Lighting   £95,000 

3 Deliver the Annual Drainage 
Improvement Programme 
- annual mini competition 

Street Lighting and 
Highways 
Construction 

£350,000 

 

4 Deliver new and maintain 
existing highway Structures 
and Bridges  

- mini competition 

Engineering and 
Design  

£1M (Adopted 

assets and 

unadopted assets 

managed by other 

services) 

5 Provide Core Sample Testing 

and Site Investigation  
- annual mini competition  

Network 

Management  

£90,000 

Page 14



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

6 Landscape and Associated 
Works  
- <£30k direct award  

£30k+ mini competition.  

Landscape Design  £4M 

 
Approval to go out to tender for the Framework was given by Procurement Board on 

the 21st April 2021.  
 

2.  The Procurement Process 
 
The Technical Services Framework was put out to open tender through the Chest on 

13th August and closed on 8th October 2021. 
 

There were 89 expressions of interest across all 6 Lots with 47 tenders submitted 
across the Lots. 
 

 Tenders 

submitted 

Lot 1 13 

Lot 2 2 

Lot 3 10 

Lot 4 10 

Lot 5 6 

Lot 6  6 
Total  47 

 

Four failed at Stage 1 leaving 43 shortlisted to Stage 2. During the Stage 2 clarification 
process a further 3 companies withdrew their submission for a particular Lot.  
 

Throughout all the Lots the following ratios were applied to the Framework tender:  
 

 Quality 30% 

 Price 50% 

 Social Value 20%  
 

Due to the duration and scale of the Framework careful consideration was given to the 
Price/Quality/Social Value ratio of the Framework assessment. Key principles of the 
Framework include ensuring maximum value for money over the course of the 3-4 

years with 50% attributed to this. Social Value has been increased to 20% to give SCC 
an opportunity to utilise the Social Value Portal’s (SVP) expertise and maximise the 

benefits to the community, local supply chain and environment. The price and quality 
elements were evaluated by the service area with the SVP assessing the Social Value.  
 

Each Lot appointed between 2 and 4 evaluators with the skill and relevant experience 
to score the Price and Quality aspects of the tenders, with moderation sessions 
facilitated by Procurement to agree the final scores.  

 
 

 
 

Page 15



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 

Lot 1 – Minor Civils 

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score inc SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

Argyle NW Construction Ltd 50% 34.32% 84.32% 

Colas Limited  42.66% 37.37% 80.03% 

Rosgal Limited  44.11% 32.34% 76.45% 

P Casey (Land Reclamation) 
Ltd 

37.38% 37% 74.38% 

Bethell Construction Ltd  36.32% 30.10% 66.42% 

Eric Wright Civil Engineering 

Ltd  
30.95% 33.88% 64.83% 

Argyle NW Construction are the top ranked contractor for Lot 1, and awarded the 
Direct Award for works under £150,000.  

Lot 2 – Vehicle Restraint Systems  

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 

score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 

score Incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 

Score 

100% 

Coating Services Ltd 50% 45% 95% 

Protek Fencing Ltd  31.23% 34.66% 65.89% 

 

Lot 3 – Drainage  

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

Colas Limited  50% 36.95% 86.95% 

Rosgal Limited  39.6% 32.99% 72.59% 

Page 16



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

General Utilities NW Ltd  39.29% 27% 66.29% 

AE Yates Limited  26.11% 38% 64.11% 

Bethell Construction Ltd 22.07% 29.15% 51.22% 

No Dig Drainage Solutions 
Ltd   

19.5% 25.38% 44.88% 

 

Lot 4 – Structures and Bridges   

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

P Casey (Land 
Reclamation) Ltd 

38.46% 34% 72.46% 

Eric Wright Civil 

Engineering Ltd 

30.82% 39.79% 70.61% 

Coating Services Ltd  27.34% 38.91% 66.25% 

Amalgamated Construction 
Ltd (trading as AmcoGiffen) 

37.51% 28% 65.51% 

A E Yates Limited  22.82% 37.24% 60.06% 

Bethell  Construction 

Limited  

20.64% 35.45% 56.09% 

 

Lot 5 – Coring and Site Investigation   

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

Pavement Testing 
Services Ltd  

27.59% 44% 71.59% 

Page 17



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

Construction Testing 
Solutions Limited 

50% 17% 67% 

Concept Engineering 
Consultants Ltd 

31.12% 33.36% 64.48% 

 

 

Lot 6 – Landscape  

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 50% 

% Quality 
score incl SV 

Max 50% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

P Casey (Land 
Reclamation) Ltd 

45.46% 46.57% 92.03% 

Wright Landscapes 50% 27.44% 77.44% 

Horticon Ltd  49.92% 24.45% 74.37% 

Groundwork Landscape 

Ltd  

48.69% 22.72% 71.41% 

Landscape Engineering 
Ltd 

49.65% 20.53% 70.18% 

Bethell Construction Ltd  41.47% 28.14% 69.61% 

P Casey are the top ranked contractor for Lot 6, and awarded Direct Award for works 

under £30,000.  

 

Over the Framework evaluation process Price, Quality and Social Value have been 

scored as above. In some cases this has meant contractors have scored higher in the 
Quality element than Price due to the high quality of the responses. This is clearly 

shown on the above table. All contractors appointed to the Framework will have the 
opportunity to bid for work in their Lot over the course of the Framework, using their 
stated price, with the exception of any Direct Awards. For Lot 1 this is works under 

£150,000 and Lot 6 under £30,000. Prices submitted for the Framework may be 
adjusted for inflation annually. Prices submitted for further competitions may be lower 

than the Framework price but cannot be higher.  

Page 18



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Any further competitions which are over £75,000 will be required to be issued via the 
Chest, unless it is a Direct Award. All further competitions will reflect the same 

weighting used in the Framework – 50% price, 30% quality, 20% social value.  

The Framework has been tendered on a 3-year basis with the option to extend for 

another 12 months. The decision to extend would be taken back to Procurement Board 
for agreement at the appropriate time, if required. 

Although contractors are to be appointed to the Framework, this is not a guarantee of 

work. A process will be followed in each Lot through further competitions to award 
works using the same careful consideration which was given to the 

Price/Quality/Social Value ratio used in appointing contractors to the Framework. 

 
In order to maintain the highest standards of performance on all works procured 

through the Framework Agreement, KPI’s have been set out at Lot level to ensure 
performance can be monitored throughout the contract period. These measures will 

demonstrate continuous improvement by providers and allow any poor performance 
to be challenged appropriately. A balanced scorecard will be used throughout each 
contract to provide clear mechanism for feedback to providers.  

 
3. Social Value  

 
The weighting of Social Value has been increased to 20% in the award of this 
Framework to give SCC an opportunity to utilise the Social Value Portal’s (SVP) 

expertise and maximise the benefits to the community, local supply chain and 
environment. 

 
The Contractor’s ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as part of the 
Framework process based on the agreed Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOM’s) 

for SCC and using the Social Value Portal to submit their qualitative and quantitative 
offers. Each was given equal weighting.  

 
As the Framework award is not a guarantee of work, their Social Value offers are 
based on indicative figures and through the award of work through the Framework 

process contractors will have to commit to specific Social Value offers for the 
projects/programmes they are bidding for and these must be in line with their original 

offers. 
 
All bidders have demonstrated a satisfactory capacity to deliver Social Value 

outcomes as assessed by the Social Value Portal. 
 

There are in excess of 80 measures in the Social Value Portal TOM’s. Some of the 
measures included in this Framework are; numbers of direct employees retained, local 
employees in the supply chain, voluntary hours to support VCSE’s, total spend the in 

the local supply chain, number of armed forces veteran employees, number of staff 
hours spend on local school and college visits, number of weeks of training 

opportunities on the contract, number of weeks of apprenticeships, number of weeks 
of meaningful work placements that pay the Real Living Wage, contributions made on 
the contract to own carbon offset fund or external provider.  

 

Page 19



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 
Salford 2025, a Modern Global City. 

Transport in Salford 2025 
 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

There are no equality impacts arising as a consequence of this report.

 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

Risk of this Framework not in place is High. Interim arrangements for several areas 

have either finished or are at the limits of approved routes to market. Any further delay 
to implementation of this Framework will have negative operational impacts. 

 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

 
Approved Place Capital and Revenue Budgets for 2021/22 and beyond 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service  

 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 

may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 

reason not to do so. 
 
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluatio n 

process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. The work undertaken is explained in the 

body of the report, and sets out the issues and tender process involved, including the 
market engagement exercise, the division of the Council’s requirements into six 
different into lots, and evaluation of bids, to ensure compliance with PCR and CSO’s. 

 
A total of forty three compliant bids were assessed at stage 2 of the procurement 

process from framework suppliers across the six value lots, which have been 
evaluated in accordance with the procurement procedures and selection criteria set 
out in the tender documents resulting in the proposed appointment to the frameworks 

of the contractors listed in the report under the various lots. 
 

Page 20



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The award procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements 
of the PCR and CSO’s. 

 
Once the framework has been set up, the arrangement will enable the Council to call-

off the specified services against the agreed set of terms etc. should it wish to do so 
within the lifespan of the framework. The framework itself is not a contract and it must 
be made clear to providers on the framework that the Council is under no obligation to 

guarantee a certain volume of work or any work to any of the providers who are on it. 
Effectively being party to the agreement does not place any obligation on the Council 

(or any other eligible authority) to use the framework but provides them with the 
opportunity to do so.  
 

The maximum term for the framework agreement will be a 4 year period (3 years with 
the option to extend for a further year), and the terms and conditions established under 

it govern the contracts let under it, although each contract will inevitably have some 
differences to reflect the agreement struck between the parties to the contract. At the 
end of the term, the framework must be dissolved and put out to competition again 

should that vehicle be required to assist the Council in providing services. This again 
ensures that value for money can be periodically tested and open competition 

maintained. The period of the individual contracts established under the framework 
can be as long or as short as the authority requires, and may be entered into at any 
time during the period of the framework arrangement. 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Submitted by:  Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Accountancy 

Date: 25th November 2021 

The financial implications of contracts let under this framework will continue to be 
considered/reported on a scheme-by-scheme basis. Potential savings achieved 
through the framework should be noted. 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Heather Stanton, Category 

Manager 

This framework has been developed and advertised as an open tender on the Chest 
to achieve an open and transparent route to market for Highways Works for the next 

3 years with the option to extend for a further 12 months.  The framework has a direct 
award option for minor civils up to the value of £150,000.  Any works which are over 

this threshold will be sent out as further competition via the Chest.  Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5 
will award works as a further competition from contractors already awarded a place on 
the framework under the specific Lot or Lots.  Lot 6 is similar to Lot 1 with a direct 

Page 21



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

award option to the value of up to £30,000 and anything above this threshold will 
require further competition advertised on the Chest.  This complies with SCC standing 

orders. 

Social Value has been achieved through the TOM’s on the Social Value portal and will 

be managed on a quarterly basis for each contractor depending on the level of work 
they gain either through direct award or further competition per Lot. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by:  
 

N/a for this framework 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Hayley Nixon 

 

Through the quality and Social Value assessment, using the agreed SCC Themes, 
Objectives and Measures, and the Social Value Portal consideration to minimising 
the carbon impact of these works has been considered. Through the award of works 

through the framework specific commitments will be made for each contract that will 
look to confirm the commitments made by contractors in the delivery of schemes.  

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

N/a  

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Hayley Nixon  
TELEPHONE NUMBER: WFH 

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact. 

 
All  

 

Page 22



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
14th December 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Chapel Street East Phase 1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Chapel Street East 

Phase 1 and approve the fees and other cost associated with the delivery of the 
project, as noted below and as detailed in the main body of this report: 

1. Approve the appointment of The Casey Group Limited, subject to Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority approval of Full Business Case and Delivery 
Agreement, at a cost of  £2,365,431.37, to undertake the construction works 

on the Chapel Street East Phase 1 project; 

2. Approve the creation of a purchase order to The Casey Group Limited to the 

value of £2,365,431.37, to enable payments to be made to the contractor; 

3. Approval of a risk allocation totalling £429,937.34 which can be drawn down 
on by the Project Team. This is based on the Quantitative Risk Assessment 

(QRA) which has been produced for the scheme; 

4. Approve the Construction Phase Supervision and Management costs proposed 

to be delivered by Salford City Council staff, totalling £212,272.46.  

5. Approve the ‘Statutory Undertaker Diversion’ costs associated with the project 
totalling £497,762.82 and approve the creation of the necessary Purchase 

Orders; and 

6. Approve the ‘Other Costs’ associated with the project delivery totalling 

£132,953.14 and approve the creation of any required Purchase Orders 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5b



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Chapel Street East Phase 1 

Name of Successful Contractor  The Casey Group Limited 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 04233269 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £2,365,431.37 Full project 

Risk Allowance £429,937.34 Risk Allowance 

Contract Duration  10 months 

Contract Start Date  14/02/2022 

Contract End Date  09/12/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 Not applicable 

Optional Extension Period 2 Not applicable 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Simon Telford, 07799677214 

 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Mini Competition 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

Bolton Council Highways Framework Contract – 
Lot 3 (NEC4 Option B – Priced Contract with Bill 

of Quantities) 

Funding Source 

Grant Funding from Mayors Challenge Fund & 

Local contribution – S106 and Developer 
Contribution 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer 

 

 

Wishes to seek accreditation 

 

 
 

Page 24



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 

contract. 
 
A Tranche 1 funding submission was made to the Mayor’s Challenge Fund (MCF) to 

develop proposals for a walking and cycling route on Chapel Street, between New 
Bailey Street and Blackfriars Street. In July 2018, Chapel Street East Phase 1 gained 

programme entry to the MCF which resulted in the award of project development 
funding to progress the design and business case.  

Following development of the scheme design, a report was taken to Procurement 

Board on the 3rd March 2021, and subsequently approved, that sought approval for 
the scheme to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing 

Orders through an existing framework. 

The scheme tender process commenced 3rd September 2021 and concluded 21st 
October 2021. Following the completion of the tender assessment, this report 

discusses the procurement and evaluation processes that have taken place to identify 
the preferred principal contractor for the Chapel Street East Phase 1 scheme. It 

confirms the outcomes of the assessment and why the proposed principal contractor 
has been selected, including their contribution to social value. 

The report seeks approval to create a purchase order for £2,365,431.37, subject to 

confirmation of Full Business Case approval from GMCA, and for approval of a risk 
allocation, totalling £429,937.34, which can be drawn down on by the Project Team. It 

also seeks approval for fees and other cost associated with the delivery of the project, 
as noted in this report. 

The overall project is valued at £4,688,131.48, comprising of: £4,192,411.48 of Mayors 

Challenge Fund (MCF) funding; and a local contribution of £495,720. 
 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

- Report of the Strategic Director for Place to Procurement Board on 3rd March 
2021. Approval to go out to competition for the Chapel Street East Phase 1 

Mayors Challenge Fund scheme. 
 

- Minutes from Procurement Board meeting held via MS Teams. 3 March 2021. 

 
- Report Of The Strategic Director Place To The City Mayor At Property & 

Regeneration Briefing on 22nd February 2021. City Centre Salford ‘Chapel 
Street East Phase 1’. GM Mayor’s Challenge Fund For Walking & Cycling 
(MCF). 

 
- Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development briefing 12th January 

2021. City Centre Salford ‘Chapel Street East Phase 1’ GM Mayor’s Challenge 
Fund For Walking & Cycling (MCF). 

Page 25



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
- Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development briefing 12th January 

2021. City Centre Salford ‘Active Centres, Corridors & Neighbourhoods 
Project’. GM Mayors’ Challenge Fund for Walking & Cycling (MCF). Section 

106 match funding contributions. 
 

- Chapel Street East Phase 1 progress update and public consultation.  Briefing 

report of Head of Highways and Infrastructure to Lead Member for Planning & 
Sustainable Development (18th June 2019).  

 

 
 

KEY DECISION:   

Yes 

 
 
DETAILS:  

 
1. Background 

1.1 Chapel Street, one of Salford’s oldest streets, is the key corridor connecting 
the University of Salford and the Crescent to the west, and Greengate to the 
east. It is an important element of the transport network and central 

component and driver of regeneration in the area. 

1.2 Chapel Street plays an important role in both serving local access and 

supporting connectivity into and out of the city centre. This includes its role as 
a public transport corridor and as a corridor in the walking and cycle network 
as identified through the development of Salford’s Local Cycling and Walking 

Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). Chapel Street was subsequently identified as a 
key link in the Bee Network and is central to the ambitions for sustainable 

connectivity in city centre Salford.   

1.3 On 29 March 2018 Greater Manchester Combined Authority agreed to allocate 
£160 million to a Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF). 

1.4 A Tranche 1 funding submission was made to the Mayor’s Challenge Fund 
(MCF) to develop proposals for a walking and cycling route on Chapel Street. 

In July 2018, Chapel Street East Phase 1 gained programme entry to the MCF 
which resulted in the award of project development funding to progress the 
design and business case. 

1.5 Preliminary design work was undertaken to support the public consultation for 
the scheme in Summer 2019. Feedback from consultation and further 

investigation of site conditions has informed the subsequent work to progress 
the detailed design.  

1.6 The scheme received approval to go out to tender in Spring 2021. Following 

the completion of the tender assessment approval is now been sought for the 
appointment of the highest scoring tender return. 

Page 26



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 

2. Detail 

2.1 As described in the report to the 3rd March 2021 Procurement Board, the 

Chapel Street East Phase 1 scheme will transform a section of Chapel Street 
on the Bee Network between New Bailey Street and Blackfriars Street. It is 
designed to reduce the dominance of general traffic and provide direct and 

safe routes for pedestrians and cyclists accessing the city centre through 
provision of new cycle facilities and enhanced crossing provision. Public realm 

improvements are also proposed which will support the wider regeneration of 
central Salford and provide an attractive gateway into the city centre. 

2.2 The scheme uses a ‘complete streets’ approach to rebalance the space in 

favour of pedestrians and cyclists whilst catering for buses, general traffic and 
loading. The proposals include: 

 
- Continuous cycle tracks and footways giving pedestrians and cyclists 

clear priority over side roads; 

- Improved crossing points; 
- High quality public realm; and 

- Landscaping and sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS).  
 

2.3 A copy of the General Arrangement drawing can be found in Appendix 1. The 

project once completed will:  
 

- Establish high quality walking and cycle links on a key section of the city 
centre and Bee Network as evidenced through network planning and 
stakeholder engagement carried out for Salford’s LCWIP; 

- Address severance and barriers to walking and cycling that may 
currently discourage travel by active modes and enable mode shift from 

private car;  
- Embed sustainable city centre infrastructure that complements emerging 

plans for the city centre that hope to achieve a stronger role for walking 

and cycling; 
- Complement the regeneration and long-term economic growth 

opportunities for Chapel Street and City Centre Salford both through 
connectivity and place making; 

- Improving quality of life through promotion of sustainable, healthy and 

connected communities where sustainable travel provides the mode of 
choice for local trips and access to public transport; and 

- Enhancing the environment both through a greener and more attractive 
street scene and through supporting cleaner air though mode transfer. 

 

2.4 Approval to award the contract will enable the progression of the scheme to 
the delivery phase, subject to the award of funding following submission of the 

Full Business Case, which is expected to be confirmed January 2022. 
 

Page 27



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
3. The Procurement Process 

3.1 The procurement route selected for the Chapel Street East Phase 1 scheme 
was the City Council’s existing Bolton Council Highways Framework 2019-

2023 Contract – Lot 3 (NEC4 Option B – Priced Contract with Bill of 
Quantities). 

3.2 The Bolton Framework has successfully delivered a number of schemes of a 

similar scale/nature to Chapel Street East Phase 1 over the course of its 
lifespan.  This successful track record and the potential for achieving value for 

money were the reasons for selecting this framework. 

3.3 The project went to tender on 3rd September 2021. Bidders were given unti l 
15th October for tender returns although a week extension was agreed to 21st 

October following receipt of a tender query.  

3.4 All five tenderers on the framework were invited to tender in the form of a mini-

competition. There were three returned tenders, all of which were compliant 
in their return. 

The tender evaluations were consolidated by Salford City Council’s 

Procurement Team and incorporated the following assessments: 

 An assessment of the Quality Section by representatives of the 

Engineering Team who have been involved in the design of the project 
and in the preparation of the tender documents; 

 An assessment of the Commercial offer by the Procurement Team; and 

 An assessment of the Social Value offer by the Procurement Team using 
the Social Value Portal. 

 

3.5 The tenderers were asked five questions in the quality section of the mini 

tender, covering a range of criteria: Quality; Environmental Management; 
Traffic Management; Communications Strategy; and Project Management. 
Additional questions were also asked covering Social Value and there was a 

further assessment based on Price.  Tender bids were evaluated to determine 
the most economically advantageous tender on a 40% Price, 20% Social 

Value and 40% Quality basis. The Social Value weighting reflects the 
importance of Social Value to the City and the potential for the scheme to 
provide additional community, environment and economic benefits for local 

communities in the area served by Chapel Street.   

3.6 Based upon the scoring criteria, The Casey Group Limited (Provider C) 

received the highest overall score and was deemed the most economically 
advantageous tender, based upon the quality and pricing assessment. As a 
result, they are the contractor recommended for award. The outcomes of the 

assessment are summarised in the table below. 

Page 28



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 

 

Name of Bidder 

(Anonymised) 

Price 

Score              
(Max 

40%) 

Quality 

Score                
(Max 

40%) 

SV Score      
(Max 
20%) 

Total 

Score 
(Max 

100%) 

Ranking 

Provider A 40.00% 20.00% 11.65% 71.65% 2 

Provider B 35.21% 27.00% 8.70% 70.91% 3 

Provider C 37.48% 21.00% 14.00% 72.48% 1 

 

3.7 The tendered price submitted by Provider C was the second lowest. However, 

once quality and social value were taken into account, the submission scored 
highest overall and is therefore considered to be the Most Economically 

Advantageous Tender (MEAT).   

3.8 The starting date for the contract is 14th February 2021 with a contract period 
of 10 months. These dates are subject to the award of funding following 

submission of the Full Business Case, which is expected to be confirmed by 
January 2022. 

3.9 The successful Bidder will be required to use the Social Value Portal  
throughout the contract period to allow for contract management of Social 
Value KPIs and commitments. In addition contract monitoring is expected to 

review the following: 

 Progress / programme update; 

 Total contractor person-hours worked on site;  

 The number of RIDDORS in the period; 

 The number of Lost Time Accidents (LTAs) in the period;  

 The number of cable /service strikes in the period;  

 Early Warning discussions; and  

 Compensation Event discussions. 

 

Page 29



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

4. Social Value 

4.1 The tender documentation included a section (B) relating to Social Value. 

Tenderers have been assessed by the Procurement team, using the Social 
Value Portal, against how they would deliver Social Value during the 

implementation of the project in relation to the three priority Social Value 
outcomes for Salford: 

 Social: increased community strength and resilience; 

 Environmental: improved impact of the local environment on people’s 
wellbeing; and 

 Economic: increased number of quality employment opportunities and 

reduced poverty for local citizens. 

 

4.2 A weighting of 20% was applied to this question which asked tenderers to 

cover, as a minimum, the following aspects of social value: 

 Details of any traineeships, apprenticeships, work experience 
placements and employment of local labour on this contract; 

 Details of any commitments to pay the Salford Living Wage (as published 
by the Living Wage Foundation); 

 Details of any local companies to be employed as sub-contractors or 
local suppliers to be utilised in delivering this contract; 

 Details of any planned engagement with local secondary schools around 
curriculum and careers development; 

 Details of any proposed donations or in-kind contributions to local 

community and user groups;  

 Details of any proposed corporate volunteering days to be undertaken 

as part of this contract to support improvements in the local area; 

 Details of any specific environmental sustainability practices / measures 

to be employed on this contract; and 

 How you will develop, monitor and report upon the Social Value you 

deliver.             

 

4.3 The Casey Group Limited is an SME based in Rochdale, Greater Manchester. 
95% of employees reside in Greater Manchester and 12 reside in Salford. 5 
of the Salford employees have been allocated to work on the project. 

Page 30

https://www.livingwage.org.uk/what-is-the-living-wage


Sample B – aw ard of contract  

4.4 The Casey Group has experience of working in Salford over a number of years 
and has existing working relationships with local stakeholders that could 

support the delivery of Social Value initiatives.  

4.5 The Social Value Portal Assessment of the submission included a quantitative 

(monetised) assessment of the Social Value tender submissions. The Casey 
Group Limited had the highest value at £1,230,528.96. This reflected the 
submissions commitment to working with local subcontractors and supporting 

local employment. The following work is proposed to be undertaken by 
subcontractors based in Salford: 

 Traffic Management to be undertaken by UDP Traffic Management; and 

 Macadam Surfacing to be provided by Aggregate Industries UK.  

 

4.6 Co-ordinated by their in-house Social Value Team, key aspects of the 
proposed approach, which will be monitored through the Social Value Portal 

and regular contract monitoring, include: 

 Signed up member of the Mayors Employment Charter; 

 Committed to work towards accreditation as a Living Wage Foundation 
accredited organisation; 

 Use of local apprentices, safeguarding the employment of an existing 

apprentice and recruiting an additional apprentice in partnership with 
Salford City College; 

 Provision of a six week work experience placement, including training, 
working with local charity Emmaus Salford; 

 Creation of an additional employment position as a result of the scheme. 
Employment search to work in partnership with Salford Employ and 

target those who have been long-term unemployed. 

 Locally based subcontractors and suppliers with a minimum of five 
operatives being based in Salford. Commitment to increasing 

expenditure in the local area with circa £1,000,000 to be spent within 
Salford; 

 Commitment to engage with a local secondary school to provide 
curriculum and career support. This is to include a site walkaround, a 
Health and Safety Awareness Presentation, a careers workshop, and 

materials to support lessons on careers advice;  

 Environmental sustainability practices are to be applied; 

 Offer of £1000 to support a local cause; and 

Page 31



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 A commitment to provide 40 volunteer hours (using Corporate 
Volunteering Days) to assist with clearing an overgrown area. 

 

4.7 On completion of the scheme,  the local environment of Chapel Street will be 

enhanced and improved links for walking and cycling will be provided 
(including for accessing Salford Central Station).  

4.8 The business case for the scheme also includes a budget of £42,225.60 to 

support scheme Activation. This funding would be used to promote the 
scheme, and walking and cycling more generally, amongst local communities 

and businesses and provide training to improve cycle confidence and skills.  

 

5. Project Costs 

5.1 The total value of the scheme, including development costs is £4,688,131.48. 
A breakdown of the scheme costs for which approval is being sought from  

procurement board is summarised in the table below.  
 

Cost Item 
Procurement Board 

Approval Sought 

Principal Contractor £2,365,431.37 

SCC project delivery resources  

(Supervision and Management Fees) 
£212,272.46 

Statutory Undertakers £497,762.82 

Risk Allowance £429,937.34 

Equipment/ Other Costs £132,953.14 

Total seeking approval for £3,638,357.13 

 
 

Principal Contractor 

5.2 This report seeks approval for the appointment of The Casey Group Limited 
subject to Greater Manchester Combined Authority approval of Full Business 

Case and Delivery Agreement, at a cost of  £2,365,431.37, to undertake the 
construction works on the Chapel Street East Phase 1 project. 

5.3 Approve the creation of a purchase order to The Casey Group Limited to the 

value of £2,365,431.37, to enable payments to be made to the contractor 

 
  

Page 32



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Risk 

5.4 A quantified risk allowance / assessment (QRA) has been undertaken for the 

scheme as part of the scheme business case and funding submission. Risk 
for the project has been calculated through monetising the designers Risk 

Register and through specific risk workshops throughout the design process 
where the knowledge and experiences gained from delivering projects of a 
similar nature were incorporated into risk allocation.  

5.5 The QRA has been updated following the completion of the Tender 
Assessment period and will be included in the business case to be submitted 

November 2021. The current calculated risk amount is £817,137.34. This is 
for the full project including construction works, statutory undertakers and 
other project related risks. This report seeks approval for a proportion of the 

total risk allocation relevant to the contract, totalling £429,937.34, which can 
be drawn down on by the project team. 

5.6 Risk will be monitored throughout the project delivery. With the risk allocation 
in place this will allow for timely resolutions of any change that may occur 
when on site in a cost-effective manner. 

Construction Phase Supervision and Management Fees 

5.7 It is proposed that the construction phase supervision will be undertaken by 

Salford City Council staff. This report seeks approval for Construction Phase 
Supervision and Management costs totalling £212,272.46. 

5.8 This would comprise a broad range of services required to oversee and 

support the delivery of the scheme. This is to include supervision and project 
management costs from the Highways Design and Landscape Design teams 

and costs associated with the Clerk of Works and Principal Designer. It would 
also include additional services such as Traffic, Street Lighting and depot 
costs.   

Statutory Undertaker Diversions  

5.9 As part of the scheme there will be a requirement for Statutory Undertaker  

Diversions. This report is seeking approval of costs associated with the project 
totalling £497,762.82 for the necessary diversions. The individual values are 
detailed in the table below: 

 

Cost Item 
Procurement Board 

Approval Sought 

BskyB £11,674.01 

BT £117,928.45 

Electricity North-West £148,379.99 

City Fibre £28,549.12 

Page 33



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

United Utilities Water £36,882.00 

Verizon £41,062.64 

Vodafone £36,615.95 

Virgin Media Cabinet £63,583.83 

Virgin Media Trial Holes £13,086.83 

Total seeking approval for £497,762.82 

 

Other Costs 

5.10 To successfully deliver the project, a range of items such as a new Toucan 
Crossing, relocation of an In-Focus Media booth and relocating bus stops will 

be required as part of the scheme. Additional funding will be required in 
addition to those cost noted elsewhere in this report. These are defined as 

‘other costs’ for the purposes of this report. This report is seeking approval for 
£132,953.14; the table below sets out these costs 

 

Other Costs (Equipment and Other) Value 

RSA Costs (Stage 3/4)  £           7,826.57  

UTC Costs (Toucan Crossing / Smart Sensors)  £         28,500.00  

JC Decaux (relocate In-focus Media Booth)  £           7,526.57  

Bus stop relocation TfGM costs   £         21,000.00  

Lighting license agreement/costs outside tender 

(architectural lighting) 
 £         15,000.00  

Project Comms (Materials, Venue Hire etc). Staff time 
included in resource cost 

 £         15,000.00  

Scheme visualisation/drawings for communications   £           7,500.00  

TfGM cutting in traffic signal loops   £           5,000.00  

UU Permits / connections / agreements  £           5,600.00  

Network Costs (standovers/site attendance)  £           7,500.00  

Statutory Undertakers Service/Diversion Management  £         10,000.00  

Legal costs   £           2,500.00  

Total  £       132,953.14  

 
  

Page 34



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

6. Project Funding 

6.1 The total value of the scheme, including development costs is £4,688,131.48.  

6.2 The scheme is primarily being funded through Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) 
with funding to be sought for a contribution of £4,192,411.48. In addition the 

scheme funding is to be supplemented by a local contribution identified from 
within the City Councils S106 receipts and through contributions agreed with 
third parties. A total of £495,720 of local match has been identified including 

contributions relating to the following: 

  Local S106 contributions for Trinity Riverside (Select Property): £55,720;  

  Local S106 contributions from the Chapel Wharf development: 
£250,000; and 

  Local third-party contributions to be provided by English Cities Fund 
(ECf) associated with New Bailey Gateway Phase 2: £190,000. 

 

6.3 S106 funds for the scheme that were identified at programme entry have now 
been received and approval has been granted for allocation of S106 funds on 

the Chapel Street East Phase 1 scheme at City Mayor Property and 
Regeneration Briefing of 22nd February following consultation with Ward 
Councillors and Salford City Council officers. 

6.4 Agreement in principle has been received from Salford City Council’s 
development partner English Cities Fund for a contribution of £190,000. The 

agreement will be completed following confirmation of  the grant funding award 
from the Mayors Challenge Fund. 

6.5 As part of the MCF programme an allowance has been made for draw-down 

of funding to contribute towards the cost of developing the scheme. This has 
included costs associated with scheme design, consultation and the 

commissioning of surveys to understand existing ground conditions. To date 
approval has been granted for the advanced drawdown of £397,936.85.  

6.6 The Business Case required to secure the funding for Chapel Street East 

Phase 1 is to be submitted for approval in December 2021 with approval 
expected from GMCA by January 2022. 

6.7 The approvals being sought as part of this Procurement Board report are 
conditional subject to Business Case approval being granted. 

7. Consultations 

7.1 A public consultation exercise was held in Summer 2019 which sought 
feedback on the feasibility designs. Outcomes from this consultation helped 

inform the development of the detailed design. In addition there has been 

Page 35



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

ongoing engagement with businesses and stakeholders affected by the 
scheme. 

7.2 Traffic Regulation Orders for the scheme are due to be advertised in 
December 2021 / January 2022. 

 

 

8. Programme 

8.1 The forecast key project milestones are detailed in the table below. The 
forecast Contract Award, Construction Start and Construction Finishes dates 

are all subject to Business Case Approval in January 2022. 

 

Key Milestones Completion Forecast 

Procurement December 2021 

Business Case Approval January 2022 

Contract Award January 2022 

Construction Start February 2022 

Construction Finishes November 2022 

9. Conclusion 

9.1  It is recommended that Procurement Board gives their approval to: 

 The appointment of The Casey Group Limited subject to Greater 

Manchester Combined Authority approval of Full Business Case and 
Delivery Agreement, at a cost of  £2,365,431.37, to undertake the 

construction works on the Chapel Street East Phase 1 project. 

 The creation of a purchase order to The Casey Group Limited to the 
value of £2,365,431.37, to enable payments to be made to the contractor 

 Establish a risk allocation totalling £429,937.34 which can be drawn 
down on by the Project Team. This is based on the Quantitative Risk 

Assessment (QRA) which has been produced for the scheme. 

Page 36



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 Construction Phase Supervision and Management costs proposed to be 
delivered by Salford City Council staff, totalling £212,272.46.  

 ‘Statutory Undertaker Diversion’ costs associated with the project 
totalling £497,762.82 and the creation of necessary Purchase Orders. 

 ‘Other Costs’ associated with the project delivery totalling £132,953.14 
and the creation of any required Purchase Orders 

 

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

The scheme will contribute to Salford’s Great Eight priorities by supporting 
improvements to our streets and is particularly relevant to priority 3, Tackling the 
climate emergency, and priority 6, Promoting transport and digital connectivity. 
 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 
A Community Impact Assessment (CIA) has been produced for the Chapel Street 

East Phase 1 Scheme. The CIA has assessed the impact of the scheme on local 
communities and identified areas for further consideration in the development and 

delivery of the scheme.  
 
The scheme will contribute to improving accessibility for all through the 

establishment of safe and attractive routes for pedestrians and cyclists. This will 
support greater equality through promoting affordable transport options that facilitate 
access to employment and public transport (through improved access to Salford 

Central Station).  

Contribution to Social Value has also been considered as an element within the 

assessment of tender options (refer to section 4).  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

Detailed designs have been drawn up for the project and the submitted tender price 
reflects the level of work undertaken to date.  

A risk management process is in place, with a project risk allocation identified (QRA) 
as detailed in section 5 of this report. Risk will be monitored throughout project delivery 
and with the risk allocation in place, it will allow for timely resolutions of any change 

that may occur when on site in a cost-effective manner. 

If the scheme does not progress then this would result in the existing environmental 

issues on Chapel Street being unaddressed and a missing link in the city centre 
walking and cycling network. 

Page 37



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Delays to the project (beyond the 14th February 2022 contract start date) could result 
in additional costs and more challenging interfaces with neighbouring transport 

schemes. Delays to the project start date could also impact on available funding 
through the Mayor’s Challenge Fund. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

The scheme is being funded through Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) and Local Match 

as set out in section 6 in this report.  

The local match has been identified from within the City Councils S106 receipts and 

through contributions agreed with third parties. 

The Business Case required to secure the funding for Chapel Street East Phase 1 is 
to be submitted for approval in December 2021 with a decision expected from GMCA 

by January 2022. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, 
tel. 219 6323. Date: 26.11.21 
 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 

2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 

reason not to do so. 
 

The procurement of the principal contractor has been by way of a tender exercise in 
accordance with the process set out in the Bolton Council Highways Framework 
Contract – Lot 3 (NEC4 Option B), which itself was procured in accordance with the 

PCR using an OJEU process, and will therefore ensure that the risk of challenge to 
the award of any contract is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is 

extremely unlikely to be successful.  
 
Submissions were evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in 

line with procurement procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to 
The Casey Group Limited. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and 

compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR. 
 
The approval for the payment of fees to the statutory undertakers referred to in the 

report is for diversionary works to the statutory undertaker’s own equipment  under the 
New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 and in accordance with appendix 3 of the Code 

of Practice ‘Measures Necessary Where Apparatus Is Affected By Major Works 
(Diversionary Works)’. The statutory undertaker is in a unique position to carry out the 
work, and whilst the value of the proposed award is below threshold, direct awards of 

contracts may be made in limited circumstances, set out at regulation 32 of the PCR. 
 

Page 38



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The report also seeks approval for fees and “other costs” associated with the delivery 
of the project. Where additional commissions are progressed, these should be 

undertaken in compliance with the PCR (where necessary) and CSO’s. The majority 
of these are under £10,000 for which a single quotation will suffice, will be delivered 

by in-house resource, or are TfGM costs (which are made in accordance with the 
provisions in the GMCA constitution which delegates duties for managing traffic/traffic 
signals/ infrastructure etc to TfGM on behalf of the districts). 

 
The report refers to funding for the works coming from s106 funds. The expenditure 

must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning obligations. Should the 
Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within the agreements, or 
outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a developer may 

challenge that decision and claim back contributions. 
 

Legal shall be happy to advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council, 
TfGM and GMCA to ensure the Council’s interests are protected. The terms of any 
grant funding agreement will need to be adhered to in the event that there are 

clawback provisions for failure to comply. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Natalie Birchall Finance Officer L2 Ext 
2316. Date: 26.11.21. 

Full business case is to be submitted for the scheme in December 2021 with approval 

expected from GMCA by February  2021. 

Funding to appoint contractor (The Casey Group Limited) to the value of 

£2,365,431.37 will be funded from a mix of Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) and local 
contributions.  

This report also seeks approval for allocating funding to a quantified risk allocation, 

fees and other cost associated with the delivery. The total value of these additional 
elements is £1,272,925.76. 

 
The majority of the scheme’s funding (£4,192,411.48), is to come from the MCF with 
a local contribution of £495,720.  

 
The local match has been identified from within the City Councils S106 receipts and 

through contributions agreed with third parties. S106 funds for the scheme totalling 
£305,720 have been received and approval has been granted for their allocation to 
the Chapel Street East Phase 1. Agreement in principle has been received 

from Salford City Council’s Development Partner English Cities Fund for a contribution 
of £190,000. 

The approvals being sought as part of this Procurement Board report are conditional 
subject to Business Case approval being granted. 
 

As part of the MCF process for Full Business Case, Salford City Council must enter 
into a legally binding Grant Funding Agreement (GFA). This forms a financial contract 

between Salford, TfGM and GMCA. 

Page 39



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Supplied by: Heather Stanton –. 

Category Manager ext. 6241. Date: 29th November 2021 
 

The principal contractor was procured by way of a mini competition through the Bolton 
Council Highways Framework Contract 2019/2023. 
 

The Framework is compliant with the Procurement Contract Regulations and the 
Councils Contractual Standing Orders. 

 
The report also seeks approval for a number of additional elements of work 
associated with the scheme. Where additional commissions are progressed these 

should be progressed in compliance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
(PCR) and the Council’s own Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs). 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  NA 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Supplied by: Simon Telford in 
consultation with Michael Hemmingway – Principal Officer Climate Change 

 
The scheme and the development of the Bee Network in city centre Salford will support 
mode shift from private car to walking and cycling. One of the schemes central 

objectives is increasing walking and cycling. More sustainable travel choices will help 
to reduce transport related emissions. 

 
Tenderers were asked to provide details of any specific environmental sustainabili ty 
practices / measures to be employed on this contract. 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Not Applicable 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Telford 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07799677214

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Blackfriars And Trinity 
 

  

Page 40



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Appendix 1: General Arrangement Drawing 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



I

C

DYE

DYE

DYE

AH

DY

DY

RT

AL

RT

RT

DYE

BS

TI

RT

BUS

STOP

BUSP

SYE

SYE

DYE

DYE

DY

SYE

DYE

DY

DYE

DY

RT

ZG8

ZG8

WLE

ZG8

WLE

AH

S
T

O

P

S
T

O

P

B

U

S

S

T

O

P

B
U

S

B
U

S

S

L
O

W

S
L
O

W

S

L

O

W

S

L

O

W

S

L

O

W

20 20

20

CAR CLUB ONLY

ELECTRIC VEHICLES ONLY ELECTRIC VEHICLES ONLY ELECTRIC VEHICLES ONLY ELECTRIC VEHICLES ONLY

LOADING

ONLY

LOADING ONLY LOADING ONLY

L

E

F

T

T

U

R

N

114

110

Chapel Wharf
(Dandara Development)

Chapel Wharf
(Dandara Development)

Tie-in to New Bailey/Bloom Street Junctions

Chapel Street

Cook Street

Quay Street

Dearmans Place

Clowes Street

Barlows Croft

Booth Street

Bury Street

Chapel Street

Caxton Street

Tie-in to existing Blackfriars Junction

Blackfriars Road

Spaw Street

Spaw Street

Johnson Street

Browncross Street

Browncross Street
Yorkshire Street

Quay Street

Bury Street

Cros
s S

tree
t

Ga
rde

n L
an

e

John Street

SHE001

SHE001

SHE003

SHE003

SHE006SHE002

SHE007

SHE004

SHE005

Chapel Street & Hope
United Reform Church

Blackfriars Medical
Practice

Sacred Trinity Church

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A0DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

© Salford City Council J:\UV008789 Chapel Street East Ph1\03 Delivery\HGN HwayGeneral\03 Drawings\008789-SCC-HGN-XX-DR-C-0001.dwg

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

Salford City Council

millimetres

Salford City Council

Chapel Street East Phase 1

General Arrangement

PR ML SRH 1:500 27/08/2021

008789 P02

008789-SCC-HGN-XX-DR-C-0001

Key:

Extents of Civils Works

Proposed Asphalt Carriageway

Proposed Imprinted Ashpalt Carriageway

Proposed Asphalt Footway

Proposed Paved Footway

Proposed Paved Footway within private land subject to
Developer agreement

Proposed Cycletrack

Proposed Tactile Blister paving at controlled crossing
point

Proposed Tactile Blister Paving at uncontrolled
crossing point

Proposed Cycle Tactile paving

Proposed Soft Landscaping

Existing Unadopted Block Paving to remain

Highway Adoption Boundary

Proposed Tree

Proposed Seating

Proposed Sett Paving

Proposed Bollard

Proposed Sandstone Block

Proposed Cycle Stand

Notes:
1. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant

drawings. Any discrepancies, errors or omissions to be brought to
the attention of the supervising Engineer.

2. All dimensions to be checked before commencement of work on site.
3. All dimensions in metres unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement

B

N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

D2 - ISSUED FOR TENDER

SHE001 Network Rail Bridge Structure
SHE002 Sub Station
SHE003 Network Rail Bridge Structure - Height Restriction
SHE004 Private underground access
SHE005 Network Rail access
SHE006 Lighting Column Gas Vent
SHE007 Sub Stations

P
age 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
2006

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
2005

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
2004

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
2003

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
30.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
5003

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
5001

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
5002

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
2006

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
2005

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
2004

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2003

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
30.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
River Irwell

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Boro Const &

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Met Dist Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
30.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Lamb Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
31.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
S Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Signal Gantry



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 
 

The Strategic Director for Service Reform 
 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 
 

22nd December 2021 
 

 
  
TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract related to MyWork Campus Digital 
Infrastructure Upgrade. This is for Supply, Installation and Maintenance of Lot 3 – 
[MY] Booking Application 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of a 5 year contract for the supply, 
installation and maintenance of Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application to CDW 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of 
Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 
Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application 

Name of Successful 
Contractor  

CDW 

Supplier Registration 
Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement) 

02465350 

Type of organisation 
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement) 
Non-SME  

Contract Value £365,960.45 Full Project 

Contract Duration  60 months 

Contract Start Date  01/01/2022 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6a



 

 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract in relation to the larger [MY]Work enablement project, this aligns into the 
building refurbishment campus upgrade and enhances the safe return to work for SCC 
staff. 
 
Key outcomes achieved by this Tender  

• Enhance digital agility of hybrid working within aligned to City Councils wider 
[MY]Work methodology 

• Meeting room improvements 

• Software/hardware integration to existing digital infrastructure  

• Statistical analysis for future strategic decisions  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Report to Procurement Board from the Strategic Director of Service Reform requesting 
approval to go to market to procure Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application of the wider 
Campus Digital Infrastructure Upgrade dated 29th September 2021. 

 
 
KEY DECISION:   

Yes – contract value in excess of £350k 

 
 

Contract End Date  01/01/2027 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each 
Extension Period? 

Strategic Director (extension < £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & 
number) 

Matt Wall 0161 793 3993 

Lead Service Group  Service Reform & Development  

How the contract was 
procured? 

(to be supplied by 
procurement) 

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition) 

Framework Details (where 
applicable) 

(procurement body, 
framework reference & title, 

start/ end date 

Crown Commercial Service (CCS) RM6068 Technology 
Products & Associated Services 

Framework Start Date: 10.12.2019 
Framework End Date: 09.12.2023 

https://www.crowncommercial.gov.uk/agreements/RM6068 

Funding Source Capital Programme 

Page 46

https://www.crowncommercial.gov.uk/agreements/RM6068


 

 

DETAILS:  
 
1. Background 

  

• In September 2021, Procurement Board granted approval for officers to 
undertake a procurement exercise in relation to Campus Digital Infrastructure 
Upgrade – Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application using the Crown Commercial 
Framework RM6068 for Technology Products and Associated Services. 
Under this framework, Lot 1 Hardware & Software and Associated Services 
has 22 suppliers on it. 

 

• Salford City Council is going through a period of unprecedented and ongoing 
change and the need for different ways of working has been identified. As part 
of the process the Council are looking at increasing organisational and 
individual performance through enabling people to work smarter utilising 
digital tools and implementing behavioural changes in the way they work and 
the best places this can be completed. The current accommodation on the 
civic centre campus is outdated and does not provide suitable workspaces 
that are in alignment with the Council’s corporate strategy to enable the 
workforce to work smarter. The digital solutions being procured will 
complement and support the accommodation and implementation of the 
MyWork principles and programme, budget allocated to this project is outlined 
below in the financial comments. 
 

 

• Additionally, as a result of the significant organisational changes that have 
taken place throughout the COVID19 Pandemic, software allowing safe return 
is a necessity to reflect the Council’s plans to make use of campus office 
space and enhance Public Health England’s guidelines and ensure the ability 
of colleagues to work effectively to the [MY]Work methodology. 
 

 
2. The Procurement Process 
 

• A Project Group consisting of officers from across the authority was 
established to determine and shape the Council’s future [MY]Work 
requirements. These requirements were then translated into a tender 
specification for suppliers to build proposals around. A series of stakeholder 
engagement initiatives were undertaken at the project formation stage to 
ensure the tender requirements met the varied needs of users across the 
organisation. The Project Group also evaluated the bids received from the 
framework suppliers.  
 

• As part of the CCS framework utilised for this exercise there was a price / 
quality and Social Value weighting splits used. A price / scored questions and 
Social Value weighting of 35%/50%/15% was agreed by the Project Group. 
The Project Group agreed that the weightings used struck a balance between 
the need to realise global manufacturing and supply constraints incurred due 
to the ongoing pandemic and technology supply chain problems. 

 

Page 47



 

 

• Through use of the RM6068 framework, 22 suppliers were given the ability to 
tender for this contract. Due to the nature of our requirements (particularly 
around the urgency to supply and specific requirements), 1 bidder opted to 
tender as part of the competition process, CDW Limited. 

 

• In order to make a full consideration of the opportunities available to the 
Council under a new contract, the tender required bidders to submit a range 
of prices based on digital specifications put forth by the project group. 

 

• Suppliers were asked to provide a solution fit for purposes based on the 
specifications provided, there was also an innovative ask of the suppliers to 
future roadmap the technology to align with the City Councils digital roadmap. 
 

• A detailed cost comparison was undertaken to compare all tender responses 
received; all bids submitted are displayed below along with the winning price 
breakdown. 
 

o 1st – CDW Limited – Total Weighted Score 79.00% 
▪ Year one capital cost including year one subscription 

£365,960.45 
▪ Revenue year 2-5 total £181,484.80 

 
 

Service Improvements 
 

• The GoBright Room and Desk booking system. Based out of the Netherlands, 
GoBright have been delivering these solutions many years and as such we 
feel that their approach compared to other software developer’s solutions is 
better and a great deal more modular. The very fact that GoBright is not 
consumed on a user base model will make it inherently more cost effective to 
SCC. Some of the service improvements below: 
 

o Room and desk booking solution. It includes: a mobile application for 
all users (iOS and Android) to navigate the various resources (rooms 
and desks) as set out within the tender document, a visitor 
management at each site is delivered with a 15”interactive Android 
display which can be customised to SCC’s corporate colours and 
logos. Users will be able to book themselves into each of these 
resources via the app, or for desks we have added NFC stickers. 
 

o Inclusions of room booking panels for the outside of each meeting 
room which feature LED indicator bars to show the active status of any 
given room physically whilst still showing status in real-time via the 
mobile application, with built in NFC/RFID. Any future plans to upgrade 
the ageing door access control system could yield a dual purpose 
benefit for users using a fob or RFID card to arrive at their allotted 
room. For the desks we have introduced a wireless desk occupancy 
sensor to show more accurate usage information. 

 

Page 48



 

 

o We have decided to use the DeskConnect module which will again 
show the same real-time status via it’s coloured LED circle and again 
allow users to show up at desks show their RFID card to book the desk 
and change its status, we have also included the Desk Glow which sits 
on each desk partition to be visible to others within the office. 

 
o GoBright is a platform which is full Cloud based, carries the ISO 27001 

certification, is GDPR proof and has multiple integrations like Active 
Directory, Microsoft O365, Exchange, which SCC already consumes. 

 
o As a software developer themselves, a great deal of money and time is 

funnelled back into Research and Development with the philosophy 
that any features developed specifically for one client are immediately 
channelled back for their customers to benefit from, a roadmap session 
can be shared with SCC however this would require a specific Non-
Disclosure Agreement on award of the contract, this will allow us to 
implement worthy changes to the system to keep aligned to our SCC 
roadmap and drive full value from the system. 

 
 
3. Social Value  
 

• As part of the quality questionnaire for this procurement process, suppliers 
were required to provide proposals around how their organisations would 
deliver social value to Salford City Council and the community it serves this 
was inputted to the new Social Value Portal.  

• The supplier that has ranked first in this procurement scored 10.50% out of a 
possible 15%.  The total value of the Social Value offering is £5431.00: 

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

N/A 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

N/A

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Medium 
 
If the Council chose not to award a contract following this procurement exercise, the 
Council’s return to work programme ([MY]Work) expectations that have been relayed 
to staff and stakeholders will not be achieved, in turn the safety guidelines also 
associated for safe hybrid working patterns will also not be achievable.  

.

 

Page 49



 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Capital Budget

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton 219 6323 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s apply to every 
contract, including temporary ones, for the procurement of supplies, services and the 
execution of works undertaken by or on behalf of the Council, subject to certain 
exceptions listed in the Orders.  
 
CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there 
is an auditable reason not to do so. The proposed award of the contract follows a call 
off exercise in accordance with the CCS Framework referred to in the body of the 
report, which is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective available for 
the Council (and other local authorities as described in the agreement) to use. 
 
The Council can comply with the requirements of PCR by carrying out its own 
procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with PCR to the extent that the central purchasing body has). The definition 
of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes framework 
agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more contracting 
authorities. 
 
In this instance submissions received from tenderers on the framework were evaluated 
on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with the published criteria 
resulting in the proposed award of the contract to CDW Ltd. The procurement 
procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements of the 
Council’s CSO’s and public procurement legislation. 
 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Jo Garvin Senior Accountant Ext 2873 

The current 21/22 capital programme for MyWork and Campus Infrastructure & 
Cyber Refresh has approved funding of £2.9 million.  It is anticipated that 
expenditure will be within the programmed level. 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Emma Heyes, Category Manager 
 
This procurement was carried out via a mini competition from the Crown Commercial 
Services RM6068 Technology Products and Associated Services, Lot 1: Hardware & 

Page 50



 

 

Software & Associated Services.  A total of 22 suppliers were invited to bid in this Lot 
and one tender was received by the closing date. 
 
Salford City Council’s contractual standing orders, states that before engaging in a 
tender and/or procurement process all Officers need consider whether there are 
other suitable alternative options available, including the use of any existing 
contracts, DPS or framework agreements accessible to the Council that may fulfil the 
requirements. 
 
The procurement process followed complies with the Council’s CSOs. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Supplied by:  
 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by:  
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is a 
joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading.  

• Place 

• Service Reform 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Matt Wall – Technology and Architecture Manager 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 793 3818

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact. 
 
 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Salford City Council Constitution 
 

Published in Accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”) 

 

Part 4 Section B Access to Information Procedure Rules 

 

Special Urgency 
 

Notice is given to the public the reasons why compliance with the requirements for 

publicity in connection with key decisions are impracticable. 

In relation to the making of decision under Special Urgency Salford City Council’s 

Constitution states - 

18. Special urgency 

 

18.1  Where the date by which a key decision must be made, makes compliance 
with Rule 17 impracticable, the decision may only be made where the 

decisionmaker may obtain agreement from: 
 
a)  (Dependant on within whose remit the decision lies) the Chair of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Board or the Chair of the relevant Scrutiny Panel or 
 

b)  if there is no such person, or if the Chair is unable to act, the Ceremonial 
 Mayor or  
 

c)  where there is no Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board or relevant 
 Scrutiny Panel, or Ceremonial Mayor, the Deputy Ceremonial Mayor 

 that the making of the decision is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred. 
 
18.2  As soon as reasonably practicable after the decision-maker has obtained 

such agreement under Rule 18.1, the decision-maker must make available 
on the Council’s website (and, optionally, at the offices of the Council) a 

notice setting out the reasons that the making of this decision is urgent and 
cannot reasonably be deferred. 

 
Title: Campus Digital Infrastructure Upgrade – [MY]Work – Lot 3 

Purpose: [MY]Work Booking Application  
 

Decision-Maker: Lead Member for Finance and Support Services (Councillor Bill 
Hinds) 

Contact: Matt Wall / Steven Fry 

Page 53



 
 

 

Notice Published: 13/12/2021 
Decision Date: 14.12.21 
 
 

The reasons for 

using the Special 
Urgency 

provisions are: 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

With only one supplier submitting a response and the urgency 

to have this in place for staff return in line with the [MY]Work 
Project. 

 
Lot 1 – 2 are to be taken to PB in January 2022 

 

 

 
  

Page 54


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 8th December 2021
	5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Technical Services and Highway Works Framework - Hayley Nixon / Charlotte Pritchard
	5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Chapel Street East Phase 1 - Simon Telford
	05(b) - 008789-SCC-HGN-XX-DR-C-0001_S2_P02 (TENDER)
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	6a Approval to Award the Contract related to MyWork Campus Digital Infrastructure Upgrade. This is for Supply, Installation and Maintenance of Lot 3 – [MY] Booking Application - Steven Fry/Matt Wall
	Special urgency (key decisions) notice 2020 (v2)


